
Cabinet 
 
  

 
Please contact: Emma Denny 
 
Please email: emma.denny@north-norfolk.gov.uk 
Please Direct Dial on: 01263 516010 
 
Monday, 15 February 2021 
 
A meeting of the Cabinet of North Norfolk District Council will be held in the remotely via Zoom on 
Tuesday, 23 February 2021 at 4.00 pm. 
 
 
At the discretion of the Chairman, a short break will be taken after the meeting has been running for 
approximately one and a half hours 
 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AND PUBLIC SPEAKING – COVID-19 
Please note that due to the Covid-19 restrictions, meetings of cabinet will be held remotely via 
Zoom video conferencing and live streamed on YouTube. 
 
Public speaking: If you wish to speak on an agenda item, please email 
emma.denny@northnorfolk.gov.uk no later than 5.00 pm on the Thursday before the meeting and 
include a copy of your statement. You will have the opportunity to make your statement by video 
link but in the event that this is not possible, or if you would prefer, your statement will be read out by an 
officer. 
 
This meeting will be broadcast live to YouTube and will be capable of repeated viewing. The entirety of 
the meeting will be filmed except for confidential or exempt items. If you attend the meeting and make a 
representation you will be deemed to have consented to being filmed and that the images and sound 
recordings could be used for webcasting/ training purposes. 

 
 
 
Emma Denny 
Democratic Services Manager 
 
To: Mrs S Bütikofer, Mrs A Fitch-Tillett, Ms V Gay, Mr G Hayman, Mr R Kershaw, Mr N Lloyd, 
Mr E Seward, Miss L Shires and Mr J Toye 
 
All other Members of the Council for information. 
Members of the Management Team, appropriate Officers, Press and Public 

 

If you have any special requirements in order 
to attend this meeting, please let us know in advance 

If you would like any document in large print, audio, Braille, alternative format or in 
a different language please contact us 

 
Chief Executive: Steve Blatch 

Tel 01263 513811  Fax  01263 515042  Minicom  01263 516005 
Email  districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk  Web site  www.north-norfolk.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

mailto:districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk


A G E N D A 
 

1.   TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may 
have in any of the following items on the agenda. The Code of Conduct 
for Members requries that declarations include the nature of the interest 
and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
 

 

3.   PROPERTY ACQUISITION LAND AT NORTH WALSHAM 
 

1 - 4 

 Summary: 
 
 
 
 
Options considered: 

The report outlines a proposal to acquire 
land at a key gateway to North Walsham 
Town Centre to support the North 
Walsham Heritage Action Zone place 
making initiative.  
 
The proposed option is to acquire the 
land to support the programme by 
improving the access to the town centre 
via the adjacent Loke.  The alternative 
option, not to acquire the land, would 
miss the potential opportunity of further 
grant funding.  

 
Conclusions: 
 
 

 
The Council has the opportunity to 
acquire land adjacent to its existing 
landholding (Bank Loke Car Park) that 
would support the objectives of the North 
Walsham Heritage Action Zone place 
making project and offer scope for 
improvement that could further enhance 
the locality and services provided by the 
Council. The total budget required for the 
acquisition, associated legal costs and 
immediate costs involved in securing the 
site, once acquired are expected not to 
exceed £100,000. 
 

Recommendations: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reasons for  
Recommendations: 
 

It is recommended that Cabinet 
resolve to acquire the land, and 
instruct the Director for Resources to 
do so at his discretion, in consultation 
with the NWHSHAZ Working Party, 
subject to all reasonable due diligence 
and legal advice.   
 
To augment the High Street HAZ place 
making project in North Walsham.  
 
 
 

 



Cabinet Member(s) 
Cllr Eric Seward  
Cllr Richard Kershaw 
 

Ward(s) affected North Walsham  

Contact Officer, telephone number and email: Renata Garfoot, Asset 
Strategy Manager, 01263 516086, Renata.Garfoot@north-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
 

4.   USE OF S106 COMMUTED SUMS TO SUPPORT DELIVERY OF 
AFFORDABLE HOMES IN NORTH NORFOLK 
 

5 - 16 

 Summary: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Options considered: 

This report seeks support to allocate 
£900k of existing Section 106 commuted 
sums to provide enabling grant to 
Registered Providers to deliver new 
affordable homes in North Norfolk. The 
funding would help deliver five housing 
schemes providing approximately 181 
affordable homes (an average of below 
£5k grant funding per home). The funding 
would be required between 2021/22 and 
2023/24 and provision for this can be built 
into future capital programmes (£500k has 
already been included in the 2021/22 
capital programme). 
 
The Section106 monies held can only be 
used to fund delivery of affordable homes. 
The option of retaining the monies for 
alternative future affordable housing 
schemes is rejected as this runs the risk 
of not using the receipts effectively and 
meaning that some of the monies may 
need to be repaid.  
 

Conclusions: 
 

The proposals in this report help deliver 
the Corporate Plan objective “Local 
Homes for Local Need” and will help 
deliver 181 good quality, energy 
efficient, affordable homes.  
 

Recommendations: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reasons for  
Recommendations: 

That Cabinet allocate £900k of the 
existing s106 monies held to support 
Registered Provider deliver new 
affordable housing schemes. 
Provision to be made in the capital 
programme for five specific housing 
schemes within the S106 Enabling 
Budget with £450k allocated in 
2021/22, £275k in 2022/23 and £175k 
in 2023/24. 
 
To provide authority for expenditure over 
£100,000. 

 



 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Cllr Greg Hayman 
 

Ward(s) affected: 
North Walsham West, Stalham, 
Priory, Bacton 

Contact Officer, telephone number and email: 
Nicky Debbage, Housing Strategy & Delivery Manager, 01263 516027, 
nicky.debbage@north-norfolk.gov.uk 
 

5.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

 To pass the following resolution: 
“That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A (as 
amended) to the Act.” 
 

 

6.   PRIVATE BUSINESS 
 

 



 

 

 
 

Property Acquisition: Land at North Walsham  
 

Summary: 
 
 
 
 
Options considered: 

The report outlines a proposal to acquire land at a key 
gateway to North Walsham Town Centre to support the 
North Walsham Heritage Action Zone place making 
initiative.  
 
The proposed option is to acquire the land to support 
the programme by improving the access to the town 
centre via the adjacent Loke.  The alternative option, 
not to acquire the land, would miss the potential 
opportunity of further grant funding.  

 
Conclusions: 
 
 

 
The Council has the opportunity to acquire land 
adjacent to its existing landholding (Bank Loke Car 
Park) that would support the objectives of the North 
Walsham Heritage Action Zone place making project 
and offer scope for improvement that could further 
enhance the locality and services provided by the 
Council. The total budget required for the acquisition, 
associated legal costs and immediate costs involved in 
securing the site, once acquired are expected not to 
exceed £100,000. 
 

Recommendations: 
 
 
 
 
Reasons for  
Recommendations: 
 

It is recommended that Cabinet resolve to acquire 
the land, and instruct the Director for Resources to 
do so at his discretion, in consultation with the 
NWHSHAZ Working Party, subject to all reasonable 
due diligence and legal advice.   
 
To augment the High Street HAZ place making project 
in North Walsham.  

 
 
  

Cabinet Member(s) 
Cllr Eric Seward  
Cllr Richard Kershaw 
 

Ward(s) affected North Walsham  

Contact Officer, telephone number and email: Renata Garfoot, Asset Strategy 
Manager, 01263 516086, Renata.Garfoot@north-norfolk.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Council was successful in 2020 in being awarded funding from Historic 

England to establish a High Streets Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) in North 
Walsham. Subsequently the Council gained funding from the Getting Building 
Fund (via New Anglia LEP) for the ‘place making elements’ of the HAZ scheme, 
which includes townscape improvements to the public realm in the Market 
Place and the connecting pedestrian routes and gateways. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

1.2 The aim of the programme is to secure lasting improvements for the town’s 
historic core, supporting its vitality and viability by improving the physical fabric 
of the town centre, restoring, repairing and improving key historic buildings and 
developing a cultural programme to celebrate the town’s historic importance.  
 

1.3 North Walsham has a disjointed network of pathways leading to its centre from 
its car parks and one, which is particularly unattractive is Black Swan Loke. 
This report relates to a proposal to acquire a vacant and derelict parcel of land 
adjacent to the route to the town centre from its main car park which would 
support the objectives of the programme.  

 

2. Acquisition proposal  
 
2.1 The parcel of land is located adjacent to the Council’s Bank Loke Car Park and 

Black Swan Loke which provides a public access to the Market Place. The site 
has been for sale for some time but its potential for inclusion in the HAZ 
programme has only recently been considered; its early acquisition would 
therefore be very timely, in order that grant opportunities can be pursued.   
 

2.2 A conditional offer for the land has recently been accepted for the freehold 
purchase of the land.  The site would present an opportunity to augment the 
HAZ scheme and would likely bring significant improvements to the connection 
between the Car park and the Market place. In order to benefit from external 
funds towards the acquisition/ improvement, any transaction needs to be 
undertaken soon. Due to the short timescale for legal completion therefore, 
Eastlaw have been instructed to progress the purchase, with exchange and 
completion of contracts subject to acquisition approval being granted.   

2.3 The purpose of this acquisition is to improve the amenity value of the land in 
question and to exploit its role in improving the connections between the Market 
Place and Bank Loke Car Park. The land may also have potential for future 
development, subject to survey/planning permission and consent from any 
funding organisations. A business case would need to be considered but such 
uses could potentially include:  
 

 Public conveniences 

 Car parking 

 Electric vehicle charging point 

 Concession pitch 
 
2.4 The default position would be to merely improve the site as an attractive area 

of amenity space as part of the public realm. 
 
2.5 If acquired and included within the ‘place making’ project of the HAZ 

programme, its design could be included within the contract for the design of 
the other town centre areas, which will be informed on the basis of widespread 
engagement with relevant stakeholders. 

3. Corporate Plan  

3.1 This proposal would potentially support the Corporate Objective of Quality of 
Life and links to the objective: 

 

 Delivery of the North Walsham Heritage Action Zone programme 
 

Page 2



 

 

3.2 The acquisition could also link to other objectives, depending on its future 
use.  

 
3.3 The Council’s Asset Management Plan which sits beneath the Corporate 

Plan, includes an Acquisition policy.  This policy sets a framework for how the 
Council acquires land and property assets, including assets where it:  

 

 Drives change within communities offering quick community benefits, 
but may have a longer term realisation of financial benefits 

 Has strategic, regeneration or redevelopment potential within the 
district  

 Improves economic development and community well-being  

3.4 To an extent, this acquisition would potentially support all three criteria. 

4. Conclusion 

4.1 An opportunity has become available to acquire a parcel of land to support the 
objectives of the Town Centre High Street Heritage Action Zone scheme for 
North Walsham in seeking to “re-stich” and improve the connectivity and 
access through the town via lokes and gateways.  

 
4.2 In addition to improving the pedestrian access route, the site could significantly 

improve the amenity of the area and may offer some further development 
potential, which could further support services provided by the Council in its 
vicinity.  

 
4.3  Due to the opportunities this site presents to augment the HAZ programme and 

the funding opportunities that exist to help meet the likely costs of its 
improvement, it is recommended to Cabinet to approve the acquisition of the 
land from the NWHSHAZ place making budget, using the grant from the Getting 
Building Fund and additional grant funding from Historic England, as 
appropriate, depending upon the timing of the completion of the acquisition. 

 

5. Implications and Risks 

5.1 As part of the acquisition process the Council will undertake all reasonable due 
diligence.  

5.2 There is a risk that the acquisition does not complete in a timescale that 
secures additional external funding.  

5.3 Whilst the primary focus of the acquisition is for the land to support the town 
centre place making objectives of the HAZ programme, there is a risk that the 
land does not deliver any further enhancements due to its constraints and 
viability. This would be determined through the development of a business 
case. 

6. Financial Implications and Risks    

6.1 An independent valuation advice report forms part of the acquisition process. 

6.2 Historic England has confirmed its readiness to meet half of the cost of the 
site’s acquisition (up to £50,000) provided the acquisition can be completed by 
31st March 2021The seller of the land is also seeking to complete the disposal 
within this time frame. Failing that, there is an opportunity to bid for funds to 
meet the costs of the improvement of the site (although not its acquisition) in 
the next financial year (it should be noted that the success of that cannot be 
guaranteed). 

Page 3



 

 

6.3 The funds for the purchase could be drawn from the Getting Building grant 
funding for the place making scheme or from an alternative Capital budget, 
which, if the timing is suitable may be matched (at 50%) by a grant from Historic 
England.  

6.4  If the purchase does not complete, abortive costs will be incurred in the region 
of £2,000.  

6.5 The revenue costs of the day to day maintenance and management of the site 
will depend upon its future use. Such costs, together with officer time, will be 
included in the business case for the future use/ development of the site.   

7. Sustainability 

7.1 The purchase of the land and improving the access to the town centre will 
enhance the attractiveness of the town and potentially retain more local 
customers, improving sustainability by reducing journeys further afield. The site 
is considered to be a derelict brownfield site with no existing beneficial uses.
  

8. Equality and Diversity 

8.1 There are no direct equality and diversity issues arising from the 
recommendation.  

9. Section 17 Crime and Disorder considerations 

9.1 The land has been subject to fly tipping in the past and therefore with the 
purchase of this asset the Council can seek to address such issues.  

 
 

Page 4



 

 

 
 
 

Use of Section106 Commuted Sums to support delivery of affordable homes in 
North Norfolk 
 

Summary: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Options considered: 

This report seeks support to allocate £900k of existing 
Section 106 commuted sums to provide enabling grant 
to Registered Providers to deliver new affordable 
homes in North Norfolk. The funding would help deliver 
five housing schemes providing approximately 181 
affordable homes (an average of below £5k grant 
funding per home). The funding would be required 
between 2021/22 and 2023/24 and provision for this 
can be built into future capital programmes (£500k has 
already been included in the 2021/22 capital 
programme). 
 
The Section106 monies held can only be used to fund 
delivery of affordable homes. The option of retaining 
the monies for alternative future affordable housing 
schemes is rejected as this runs the risk of not using 
the receipts effectively and meaning that some of the 
monies may need to be repaid.  
 

Conclusions: 
 

The proposals in this report help deliver the Corporate 
Plan objective “Local Homes for Local Need” and will 
help deliver 181 good quality, energy efficient, 
affordable homes.  
 

Recommendations: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reasons for  
Recommendations: 
 

That Cabinet allocate £900k of the existing s106 
monies held to support Registered Provider deliver 
new affordable housing schemes. Provision to be 
made in the capital programme for five specific 
housing schemes within the S106 Enabling Budget 
with £450k allocated in 2021/22, £275k in 2022/23 
and £175k in 2023/24. 
 
To provide authority for expenditure over £100,000.. 

 
  

Cabinet Member(s) 
Cllr Greg Hayman 
 

Ward(s) affected: 
North Walsham West, Stalham, Priory, Bacton 

Contact Officer, telephone number and email: 
Nicky Debbage, Housing Strategy & Delivery Manager, 01263 516027, 
nicky.debbage@north-norfolk.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 

1. Section 106 commuted sums held by North Norfolk District Council 
 
1.1 The council seeks developers to provide, as part of a market housing 

development, affordable homes on-site wherever possible. This ensures that 
affordable homes are delivered, integrated into market developments and that 
they are made available to Registered Providers at a price that is viable as 
affordable homes. However, occasionally there are reasons why on-site 
provision would not be appropriate and instead developers make a financial 
contribution, a s106 contribution or ‘commuted sum’, in lieu of the on-site 
provision of affordable homes.  
 

1.2 The level of s106 commuted sums currently held by NNDC are £1,565,411. 
However, it should also be noted that a further £721,645 s106 commuted sums 
are pending, subject to an independent viability review and agreement with the 
developer. This would bring the total of s106 receipts to over £2.2m. Details of 
s106 monies are set out in Appendix B to this report. These receipts were 
received in lieu of on-site provision of affordable housing and can only be used 
to help Registered Providers deliver affordable housing. A budget of £500k has 
been established in the 2021/22 capital programme for s106 enabling projects. 
 

1.3 This reports sets out specific recommendations for use of some of the s106 
receipts and recommends that these projects are included in the capital 
programme for 2021/22 – 2023/24 as detailed (and summarised in paragraph 
16 below). The recommended projects are summarised below, with more 
details set out in Appendix A (including some commercially sensitive 
information, therefore the appendix is Exempt). 

 

2. Extra Care Housing in North Walsham  
 
2.1 Of the total s106 receipts, £689,560 are from a recent development in North 

Walsham (as a result of an uplift clause included in the s106 which meant that 
should profits rise above a certain level the council would receive s106 monies). 
Like most s106 monies, these receipts have a requirement that best 
endeavours are made to use them in the arising parish, then the surrounding 
areas, then anywhere in NNDC. 
 

2.2 The Corporate Plan includes an objective to support delivery of 500 units of 
Housing-with-Care / Extra Care Housing. Norfolk County Council also support 
the provision of Extra Care and have developed a Living Well strategy and a 
capital budget of £30m to support delivery of new Extra Care Housing (or 
“Independent Living”) to secure nomination rights to 1,000 affordable rented 
units by 2028.  
 

2.3 Extra Care Housing is an expensive product to develop as schemes involve 
many additional features (and costs); both within individual homes to ensure 
lifetime adaptability, and also more communal areas/services to provide quality 
of life for residents. The care provided on site is paid for separately – either via 
Social Services or from fee paying customers. However, the other housing 
features in an extra care scheme must also be funded. If the higher costs of 
extra care housing were paid for by residents (through rents, service charges 
or the price of shared ownership) the schemes would not be affordable. 
Therefore high levels of initial grant funding are needed to ensure homes are 
affordable to future residents.  
 

Page 6



 

 

2.4 The Housing21 extra care scheme at Fakenham has relied on grant funding 
from Homes England, Norfolk County and NNDC (we have agreed to contribute 
£215k plus a further £90k for dementia enhancements – these have already 
been budgeted for in our capital programme). The Meadow Walk scheme in 
Fakenham will deliver 66 flats, 30 Affordable Rent and 36 shared ownership, 
all of which will be advertised through Your Choice Your Home.  
 

2.5 Housing21 have now agreed initial approval for the development of an extra 
care scheme in North Walsham. The scheme proposed by Housing21 is for 
between 73 and 76 flats (final design to be agreed). 80% of the units will be 1-
bed units and the remainder will be 2-bed units, this again reflects need. The 
scheme will be designed to Housing 21’s Design Brief and will be built to their 
specification which includes enhanced low carbon environmental performance. 
All the flats will be for Social Rent (lower than Affordable Rent and the most 
affordable) which is the new Housing 21 rents charging policy.  
 

2.6 In addition to our knowledge of the need for extra care housing across the 
district (evidence provided by Norfolk County Council identifies an unmet need 
for extra care housing of 486 homes, of which 194 should be for rent), our 
housing list shows a need for affordable housing for older people in North 
Walsham. NNDC’s housing list shows there are currently 286 households aged 
over 60 who are interested in living in North Walsham.   
 

2.7 Section 106 commuted sums arising from development in North Walsham 
could now be used on this scheme. Further details of this proposals are set out 
in Appendix A, but in summary the recommendation is for: £350k of s106 
funds to be made available deliver c.75 social rented extra care homes, 
50% funding required in 2022/23, and 50% in 2023/24. 

 
 

3. Potential Extra Care Housing in Stalham 
3.1 This potential development on a site in Stalham is at a much earlier stage than 

the North Walsham proposal. The total area of the site is 3 acres and it has the 
potential to provide an extra care housing scheme of circa 60 units, plus 
possible wider options including relocation of medical practice(s), providing 
space for other community facilities or development of other general need 
affordable homes. The site is in three separate ownerships; including one 
section owned by Norfolk Constabulary. Whilst assembling all three parcels 
would be advantageous, development of extra care and other affordable 
housing could work with two of the three parcels. The police land is 0.5 acres 
and is currently being marketed by NPS, with a closing date for bids 5th March 
2021.  
 

3.2 We have considered taking development of the site forward as an NNDC led 
project and a One Public Estate funded feasibility study was undertaken on the 
site, however this approach would involve significant funding and risk to the 
Council. We have now held initial discussions with an experienced extra care 
developer, who is interested in developing the site for affordable extra care/ 
potential other uses.   
 

3.3 The proposal is that NNDC secure the police land using s106 receipts. This 
would be legitimate use of s106 monies, provided the land were used for 
affordable housing. If an affordable housing scheme goes ahead on the site, 
the land would be NNDC’s contribution to enabling this to happen. If for any 

Page 7



 

 

reason the site were not developed for affordable housing NNDC should be 
able to sell our land, or use it for other purposes. Whilst there are no s106 
commuted sums arising from developments in or close to Stalham, there are 
older s106 monies that could now be used on this scheme.  
 

3.4 Further details of this proposals are set out in Appendix A, but in summary the 
recommendation is for: Up to £200k of s106 funds be allocated for land 
assembly to help enable development of c.60 affordable extra care 
homes, funding required in 2021/22.  

 

4. Flagship Affordable Homes in Catfield 

 
4.1 Flagship are proposing to develop 18 homes (10 Affordable Rent and 8 Shared 

Ownership) on the allocated site in Catfield, which they hope to have on site by 
November 2021. The viability of the development is tight and we recently 
refused a request to allow 100% staircasing of the shared ownership homes on 
this site, so they cannot be sold outright and ‘lost’ as affordable housing. This 
is likely to slightly reduce the potential sale price of the shared ownership 
homes and therefore make viability of the scheme more challenging. Viability 
is further challenged due to the requirement to provide an electricity sub-station 
for the development at an estimate costs of £70k. 
  

4.2 Flagship have requested £100k of enabling grant to secure this development – 
which equates to £5,556 per affordable home.  If the site were not developed 
by a Registered Provider, but was developed as a normal market led 
development, the level of affordable homes provided on the site would be a 
maximum of 50% / 9 homes. Securing the site as a Flagship 100% affordable 
development will effectively deliver 9 ‘additional’ affordable homes. Whilst there 
are no s106 commuted sums arising from developments in or close to Catfield, 
there are older s106 monies that could now be used on this scheme.  
 

4.3 Further details of this proposals are set out in Appendix A, but in summary the 
recommendation is for: £100k of s106 funds be allocated for enabling grant 
to help deliver a development of 18 affordable homes, funding required 
in 2022/23. 

 

5. Flagship Exception Housing Scheme in Warham  

 
5.1 This Exception Housing Scheme, on land east of Stiffkey Road in Warham, 

was originally planned as a Homes for Wells development. The scheme already 
has Planning Permission and is for 12 Affordable Rent homes. Homes for Wells 
had already had NNDC funding agreed to help deliver this scheme (a loan of 
£25k for pre-development costs and a further grant of £75k for development 
costs had been agreed – both from the Community Housing Fund). Flagship 
has now taken on this development from Homes for Wells who were unable to 
progress the scheme. Homes for Wells will repay the  pre-development loan 
once sale of the site to Flagship has taken place  
 

5.2 The scheme will still use Homes for Wells local allocations policy (as this was 
part of the Planning Permission) but as the development is no longer 
community-led, Community Housing Funding is not appropriate. Therefore 
Flagship are requesting £100k of enabling grant to help deliver this scheme, 
which is £8,333 per home. This is a higher grant level than other schemes but 

Page 8



 

 

reflects the higher costs of this scheme associated with use of modular 
construction. Whilst there are no s106 commuted sums arising from 
developments in Warham, there are older s106 monies from Langham or 
receipts from a recent shared equity sale in Wells that could now be used on 
this scheme.  
 

5.3 Further details of this proposals are set out in Appendix A, but in summary the 
recommendation is for: £100k of s106 funds be allocated for enabling grant 
to help deliver a development of 12 affordable homes, funding required 
in 2021/22. 

 

6. Flagship Exceptions Housing Scheme in Walcott  

 
6.1 This is a potential Exception Housing Scheme, on Ostend Road, Walcott. The 

scheme is a development of 18 homes of which 16 will be affordable rent and 
two will be market homes.  The homes are proposed to be very energy efficient 
– built using Passivhaus principles and are to be developed by a small 
independent builder.  Flagship has in principle agreed to buy the affordable 
homes from the builder, however the high energy standards of the proposed 
homes means their cost is higher than standard homes and means they are 
unviable for Flagship without extra support. S106 monies can be used to 
provide top-up funding to Flagship to ensure to secure the affordable housing 
units.   
 

6.2 A planning application has been submitted for the site and as a result NNDC 
have commissioned an independent viability assessment. This assessment 
has confirmed that there is a viability gap in this scheme if standard prices were 
paid for the homes by Flagship. In addition to bidding for higher rates of Homes 
England grant, Flagship have also requested indicative figure of £150k s106 
enabling grant to help deliver this scheme, this equates to £9,375 per home. 
This is a higher grant level than other schemes but reflects the higher costs of 
this scheme associated with Passivhaus standards. Whilst there are no s106 
commuted sums arising from developments in Walcott, there are older s106 
monies that could now be used on this scheme.  
 

6.3 Some further information on this proposal are set out in Appendix A, but in 
summary the recommendation is for: £150k of s106 funds be allocated for 
enabling grant to help deliver a development of 16 affordable homes, funding 
required in 2021/22.  
 

7. Corporate Plan Objectives 
 

The proposals in this report will help to ensure delivery of around 181 affordable 
homes which help to deliver the Corporate Plan objective “Local Homes for 
Local Need”.  
 
The objective 1.6.1 states: As the local demographic continues to age, to make 
sure that people can obtain the housing and support that they need throughout 
their lives we will work with partners to deliver 500 units of Housing-with-
Care/ExtraCare. The Council will seek to be an investment partner, where 
appropriate, to speed delivery and secure financial sustainability. The 
proposals in paragraphs 2 and 3 of this report set out how s106 monies could 
be used to support the delivery of affordable extra care homes.  

Page 9



 

 

 
The objective 1.5.1 commits the council to Investigating ways to support and 
assist affordable housing providers. Use of s106 monies, which are held for this 
purpose, is an effective way of doing this.  

 

8. Medium Term Financial Strategy 

The s106 monies are held by NNDC in lieu of on-site provision of affordable 
homes and are ‘earmarked’ or ‘ring-fenced’ funds that can only be used for this 
purpose – not to support any other NNDC activity. Additionally, some of the 
receipts have time limits on when they must be used by from the date of their 
receipt, and failure to use them in-time could mean they must be returned to 
the developer.  Therefore, considering plans to spend these receipts to deliver 
affordable homes represents effective financial planning.     

 

9. Financial and Resource Implications 

A provisional budget of £500k to support enabling activity, financed by s106 
monies, has already been included in the 2021/22 Capital Programme. This 
report recommends that this amount be increased to £900k over a three year 
period and allocated to specific projects as set out in paragraph 16. Conclusion 
and Recommendations below 

10.  Legal Implications 

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), allows 
the Planning Authority to apply obligations as a mechanism to make a 
development proposal acceptable in planning terms. Securing affordable 
housing is one of those obligations and can be in the form of commuted sums 
in lieu of on-site provision of affordable homes. These s106 commuted sums 
can then only be used for the purpose for which they were provided. In some 
cases the s106 monies have conditions relating to when and where the funds 
must be used. Typically the wording requires that the monies are used within 
10 years of receipt and best endeavours to use in the arising parish, then the 
surrounding areas, then anywhere in NNDC. Any proposed use of s106 will 
need to check these conditions are met.  

 

11. Risks 

  The key risks and mitigations associated with this report are: 

 The specified developments do not go ahead - mitigated by using funding at 
key stages in the development process, such as start on site / completion  

 In the case of funding land purchase (paragraph 3) the risk that development 
does not go ahead - mitigated by potential to sell land / use for alternative 
affordable housing scheme 

 The use of the s106 monies leaves limited funding to support future 
affordable housing delivery – mitigated as the recommendations in this 
report total £900k, which leaves £665k of existing s106 monies available 
plus a further £723k due to be received shortly.  

 The risk of not planning appropriate use of the s106 monies is that no use 
is identified within the timescales set in the s106 agreement and the money 
has to be repaid.  

 

Page 10



 

 

12. Sustainability 

This report supports the delivery of affordable homes by Registered Providers. 
Homes developed by Registered Providers will exceed Building Regulations 
standards and the standard of most market homes in terms of energy efficiency 
and space standards. Additionally, in the case of some of the specified 
developments, energy standards will be higher with the use of modular 
construction or Passivhaus principles. Ensuring that homes have affordable 
rents and low energy costs helps Registered Providers ensure the sustainability 
of tenancies. 

   

13. Equality and Diversity 
No direct implications in this report  

 

14. Section 17 Crime and Disorder considerations 
No direct implications in this report  

 

15. Conclusion and Recommendations 

The proposals in this report help deliver the Corporate Plan objective “Local 
Homes for Local Need”. The report recommends the use of £900k of the 
£1,565,411 (with the likelihood of a further £723k to be received shortly) 
existing s106 monies held specifically to deliver affordable homes.  In total the 
s106 enabling grant provision being recommended to go into the capital 
programme is as follows:  
 

Year 
Scheme 

2021/22 
(£,000s) 

2022/23 
(£,000s) 

2023/24 
(£,000s) 

Extra Care North Walsham  175 175 

Extra Care Stalham 200   

Catfield  100  

Warham 100   

Walcott 150   

TOTAL 450 275 175 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Property Acquisition Land at North Walsham
	4 Use of s106 Commuted Sums to support delivery of affordable homes in North Norfolk
	Cabinet - Exempt Appendices A & B to Use of s106 monies to support AH


